
Payette City Council  Page 1 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

MINUTES 
PAYETTE CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
June 15, 2009 

 
6:45 PM Public Hearing 
 
City Attorney Bert Osborn announced convening of the City Council for the purpose of the 
Public Hearing. 
 

A.   Conditional Use Permit- Payette School District, pasture horses for weed control on 
property on Center Avenue, 35-9-5, portion of NW ¼. The property is zoned A-
Residential. 
 
Clerk Cordova read the following letter on behalf of the Payette School District: 
 

 
 



Payette City Council  Page 2 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

 
 
Alice Nicholson – 901 River St; Payette, ID 
 
There seems to be conflict with what we have been talking about. However, it is a good 
idea. My goats do the same thing and I’m not opposed to it, but I am opposed to singling out 
individuals. 
 
Gene Lancaster – 11428 Scotch Pines Rd; Payette, ID 
 
The great idea that the school had came from me. I was contacted first by the horse fellow 
and he is also interested in the piece of property below us also so he contacted the school 
and they put that together. I think it’s great and I have been watching the progress of the 
school to see if there is a possibility of the horses taking care of the fire danger in that short 
of time. I don’t know if any of you have had the time to drive out there, but they are doing a 
number on it. It’s down more than if it was mowed and the stuff that they won’t eat they have 
already trampled down. I think the fire danger is gone already and we have another month 
to go. All I have to say is “me too”. 
 
Councilor Heleker asked if Chief Sands had a chance to go by the property and assess the 
progress of the horses. Chief Sands stated the he tries to drive by each subdivision at least 
twice a week. I’ll just give you a couple of things. What Gene has mowed out there has 



Payette City Council  Page 3 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

given me good handle on it. The fuel load is still there. There are always pros and cons to 
everything. If they have a fire up there all that fuel that is there is not going to help the 
situation, but the horses will help take the fuel load out of there. Chief Sands stated that to 
me it is an improvement from what it was. Councilor Cochran asked Chief Clark if this 
conditional use permit is granted, does that mean every time your ordinance officer makes a 
contact on weeds you are going to have to advise them that a conditional use permit is an 
option. Chief Clark stated he didn’t think this is an issue there are just a few special 
circumstances where the permit would even be a problem. Councilor Nelson asked if this 
public hearing has to do with the horses not with weed problem. Mayor Henderson stated 
correct. 
 

Public hearing ended at 6:58 PM. 
 

 
7:00 Regular Meeting 
 
A regular meeting of the Payette City Council was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mayor Henderson in 
the City Council Chambers of Payette City Hall, 700 Center Avenue. 

 
ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present: Mayor Henderson, Ivan Mussell, Lee Nelson, Les Cochran, Mark Heleker, 

Georgia Hanigan, Jeff Williams 
 
Members Absent:  None. 
 
Also Present: Jeff Sands, Fire Chief; Doug Argo, City Engineer; Mary Cordova, City 

Coordinator/Clerk; Tiffany Howell, Utility Clerk; Street Supervisor, Jamie Couch; 
Bert Osborn, City Attorney; Dave Platt, Police Captain; Gene Lancaster; Alice 
Nicholson; Aaron Sobers; Nancy Sobers; Mike Gomez; Linda Williams; Peggy 
Tipton; Karen Hollis; Liz Belvoir; Chad Boren; Chet Boren 

 
Williams moved and Mussell seconded a motion to add Item 
B work session minutes under section 3 approval of minutes. 

 
 

              After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion  
             CARRIED. 
 
PLEDGE 
 
Mayor Henderson led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Heleker moved and Cochran seconded a motion to approve 
the meeting minutes of 06/01/09 with noted changes and the 
work session minutes on 05/26/09. 

 
 



Payette City Council  Page 4 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

              After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion  
             CARRIED. 

 
APPROVAL OF BILLS & PAYROLL 
 

A motion was made by Hanigan and seconded by Williams to      
approve the City Bills & Payroll in the amount of $180,578.28 

 
             At the roll call: 
             Ayes: Nelson, Mussell, Cochran, Heleker, Hanigan, Williams 
             Nays: 
 
            The motion CARRIED. 

 
SPECIAL ORDERS 

None Heard. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS 

None Heard. 
 

PLANNING & ZONING 
None Heard. 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
A. Request from Chad Boren for discussion of disputed information regarding water/sewer 

information presented to Council. 
 
Mayor Henderson stated that because the Council has re-included the parcel owned by the 
Boren’s into the property proposed to be annexed by Ordinance 1304. This was done partially 
because the original claim of water and sewer not being available to this property; Chad Boren 
has asked to address the Council on this issue.  Let me be very clear that the public hearing 
concerning the annexation general has been closed and the only issue that you will be allowed to 
address is the availability of water and sewer and the council will only be able to ask questions on 
that particular category.  

 
Chad Boren – 2089 N 6th St; Payette, ID 
 
Mr. Boren stated that last Tuesday the City Clerk Mary Cordova informed my father that our 
property at 2089 North 6th Street was put back on the annexation list. I am under the impression 
that some of the members of this council changed their decision due to the information that Mrs. 
Cordova brought forth during the May 26th work session. The reason being that the cemetery 
has water and that it is reasonably accessible to our property. I would like to point out the 
council and to Mrs. Cordova that this is not true. The cemetery shed has a ¾” line that runs to a 
meter located in the middle of 17th Avenue, between North 6th Street and River Road. This water 
any way you run it is nearly 1,000 feet to our property and not as Mrs. Cordova would have you 
believe of some 530 feet. I tried to explain this to her in the work session but was politely 
reminded by Mayor Henderson that I was not able to interject. I understand that the water and 
sewer are not a large consideration in this decision of annexation, but I would like the council to 
consider the city doesn’t maintain roads to our property as well as street sweeping or lights. 
Mayor Henderson asked Mr. Boren to stick to the water and sewer. Mr. Boren stated that what I 
have here is a map of footage markers from this meter that is on North 17th if you would like to 
see it.  



Payette City Council  Page 5 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

 
 

B. Ordinance 1304 - AN ORDINANCE FOR THE ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY GENERALLY 
LOCATED NORTHWEST OF PAYETTE. IT INCLUDES THAT PROPERTY NOT 
INCLUDED WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS LYING WEST OF NORTH 9TH STREET RUNNING 
WEST TO THE SNAKE OR PAYETTE RIVERS, WHICH PROPERTY IS MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBITS “A” AND “B”, ALL SITUATED IN PAYETTE 
COUNTY, IDAHO, AND ADJACENT AND CONTIGUOUS TO THE CORPORATE CITY 
LIMITS; ESTABLISHING AND DETERMINING THE LAND USE CLASSIFICATION OF 
SAID LAND AS B-RESIDENTIAL, EXCEPT PARCELS #5294-1, #5451, #5450, #5449 & 
#5294 WHICH WILL BE ZONED INDUSTRIAL; DESIGNATING THAT PROPERTY 
DESCRIBED IN EXHIBITS A AND B AS A CATEGORY B ANNEXATION; MAKING 
CERTAIN FINDINGS IN THE OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE CITY CLERK; PROVIDING 
THAT COPIES OF THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE FILED WITH THE PAYETTE COUNTY 
ASSESSOR, THE PAYETTE COUNTY RECORDER, AND THE IDAHO STATE TAX 
COMMISSION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION BY 
SUMMARY. 

-THIRD READING 
 

Heleker moved and Mussell seconded a motion to introduce 
Ordinance 1304 by title only. 
 

              After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion  
             CARRIED. 
 
 
Councilor Williams stated that water and sewer aren’t an issue and I still believe that the Boren 
property just doesn’t fit. It is serviced by a State Highway not the City. It is surrounded by land that is 
not exactly residential. When should it be annexed, I don’t know but it just isn’t the same deal as all 
the rest of it. I just have an issue with that.  
 
Councilor Hanigan stated that her concern with that piece of property was is that it would remain a 
county island in the middle of something that the county isn’t servicing. They have the State of 
Oregon on the backside and they have the City of Payette everywhere else around them and I 
concern myself that the county would forget where they were if any type of emergency would happen.  
 
Councilor Mussell asked if we could have a longer time period for that piece of property, maybe a 
year farther down the road. Attorney Osborn stated that I’m assuming you could put that in the 
ordinance, yes. Councilor Nelson stated that it seems like we did that with some of the property on 
Center Avenue. Councilor Heleker stated that in the past we had talked about a time table for all of 
the properties.  
 
Councilor Heleker asked Mr. Mussell if he was stating that he would like that property to have more 
time than what we had already discussed. Councilor Mussell stated yes. Councilor Heleker stated 
that the work session that was referenced earlier was of great value to me. I was under the belief that 
there were several non-contiguous properties out there to City properties and in our further study I 
found that not to be the case. So, that changed my view point on the annexation a little bit. Again on 
the Boren property it may not be quite the same as the other properties and yet what Councilman 
Hanigan stated if it’s the only island left out there it would be treated differently.  I would be in favor of 
what Councilor Mussell has suggested to maybe give a little bit of additional time to that one property 
because it is different. I think that while we are doing this if we are going to do it, we should probably 
be consistent. Councilor Nelson stated that even though it is a State Highway so is 2nd Ave South in 



Payette City Council  Page 6 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

town and we service that. Councilor Cochran asked Councilor Mussell what a significant time frame 
would be. Councilor Mussell stated that I’m ok with the rest of it, but with that one piece of property 
giving them until 2011 to be annexed. 
 

Nelson moved and Mussell seconded a motion to amend to 
Ordinance 1304 to set the effective date for annexation to be 
as follows:  Parcel I be January 1, 2010; Parcel II be January 
1, 2010; and Parcel III be January 1, 2011. 
 

             At the roll call: 
             Ayes: Nelson, Cochran, Heleker, Hanigan, Mussell, Williams 
             Nays:  
 
            The motion CARRIED. 
 

Hanigan moved and Cochran seconded a motion to adopt 
Ordinance 1304 as amended. 
 

              At the roll call: 
             Ayes: Nelson, Cochran, Heleker, Hanigan, Mussell, Williams 
             Nays:  
 
            The motion CARRIED. 
 

Hanigan moved and Cochran seconded a motion that 
Ordinance 1304 due pass. 
 

              After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion  
             CARRIED. 
 
C. Request for extension of Curb, Gutter, and Sidewalk 

- Aric Barto  
 

Aric Barto - 721 So 12th St; Payette, ID 
 

Mr. Barto stated that when reading that contract I don’t see how I am liable. It states clearly 
in the contract that Barbara & Russell Ellis would provide curb, gutter, and sidewalk if the 
property transferred. That would be the successor in interest and the other paper I handed 
you was the successor in interest. In that original contact it does not say anything about 
default or if they were to default, so I don’t see how I can be bound by that contract. Mayor 
Henderson asked Attorney Osborn if he received a copy of this. Attorney Osborn stated no. 
Mayor Henderson stated that Mr. Barto is basing his conclusion on the definition of the 
successor in interest. Attorney Osborn asked if Mr. Barto bought the property from the 
Ellis’s. Mr. Barto stated no, he bought it through a foreclosure company. Attorney Osborn 
stated that it doesn’t matter if he’s a successor in interest or not the property is ready and 
ripe for curb, gutter, and sidewalk.  Mr. Barto stated that the second party which is the 
Ellis’s will provide curb, gutter, and sidewalk, and it doesn’t define if they default. Attorney 
Osborn stated that is doesn’t matter if they default. They City could have required curb, 
gutter, and sidewalk at that time, but they gave them an extension for whatever reason. 
They said they would do it when they were supposed to do it, and they defaulted on the 
contact with the property, so the City can require anybody to do as long as they own the 
property. Mr. Barto stated that if they had signed the original contract why does he have to 



Payette City Council  Page 7 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

live up to it. Mayor Henderson stated that because of what it states in the agreement. Mr. 
Barto stated that he didn’t sign the agreement. Attorney Osborn stated correct, but you are 
the property owner. Clerk Cordova stated that why this agreement was triggered was 
because Mr. Barto constructed a carport. Our code requires installation of curb, gutter, and 
sidewalk at that time. The reason why we granted the extension was because we didn’t 
need Mr. Barto to sign a curb, gutter, and sidewalk agreement because he was bound by 
his deed. Mr. Barto asked for an extension and that is what we are here tonight to extend 
the extension. Mr. Barto stated that he needs an extension on the meeting to consult a 
lawyer. Councilor Nelson asked Clerk Cordova what the date of the extension. Clerk 
Cordova stated that it was May 31st. 
 

D. Request for discussion of requirements for extension of temporary occupancy 
permit 

- Jeff Williams 
 

Jeff Williams – 1438 2nd Ave. So.; Payette, ID 
 
Mr. Williams stated that Mr. Osborn is neither representing me nor the city, and this is 
probably posturing, but in the interest of not having an appearance of him supporting either 
of us, is it appropriate for him to sit with the public? Mayor Henderson stated that Mr. 
Osborn will sit where he is, but he is not involved in these proceedings.  
 
I take it that you all have probably read the letter from Loren Anderson dated April 21, 
2009. Before I get into that I would like to explain a couple of things and how we got to the 
point we are today. Councilor Hanigan stated that she didn’t recall getting that letter. Mayor 
Henderson stated that he didn’t believe the Council was given copies. Mr. Williams stated 
that he assumed the Council got one during their last meeting, and that he will provide 
copies. As most of you recall on December 1, 2008 I did come in and request an extension 
for my temporary building permit. These are the minutes from that meeting. The minutes 
that I just gave you state that you did grant and extension on my storm water retention 
system. Mayor Henderson stated that we are going to propose an extension on both and 
one of them of them would be resolved before the deadline. Mr. Williams stated that the 
“other” is what we are here about tonight. The Council approved a motion to grant the 
extension of the installation of improvements on Williams’s property for a period of 6 
months, May 31, 2009. You probably have seen that I have created the bioswale for storm 
water and it appears to be working good. Once it quits raining I will start my irrigation 
system and seed this area so it is green.  
 
After the December meeting Clerk Cordova and I discussed working this out and we shared 
our separate points and views. We got busy and occasionally told each other we need to 
get together and discuss this. I submit to you copies of emails between Clerk Cordova and 
myself and she gave me a copy of the City Code that she sent me, and I realize it might 
take you a while to read all that. Basically my contention is in no place does it say the 
developer shall give the required right of way for the installation of required curb, gutter, 
and sidewalk. I told Clerk Cordova that I still don’t see after reading what you have in front 
of you where it says the landowner will not be compensated. On April 6th of this year Clerk 
Cordova and I scheduled a meeting to discuss this issue and she told me and I quote “I 
guess I can’t adequately explain this to you, so the City has hired an attorney”. Clerk 
Cordova, two attorneys from Moore, Smith, Buxton and Turke, and I had this meeting and 
incorrectly I assumed you all had read the letter, and I will give that to you in a minute. 
Frankly it is my opinion the City hired two attorneys to send me multiple letters and it was a 
total misappropriation of taxpayer’s fund. Had Clerk Cordova said let’s bring this before the 



Payette City Council  Page 8 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

Council we could have resolved this without it being at the taxpayer’s expense. But here we 
are and it is my goal to negotiate a property rights issue and set the stage for future citizens 
to try and negotiate with the staff on the staff’s interpretation of City Code. This isn’t just 
about Jeff and Linda Williams this is about black and white and how we treat our citizens 
and businesses.  
 
Mr. Williams provided a copy of a letter from Loren Anderson to the Council. This is a copy 
of the letter that I received from Loren Anderson one of the attorney’s the City hired. At this 
point I would like to go over some inaccuracies in the letter. On page two the third full 
paragraph, Ms. Anderson states because you changed the use of these buildings and 
substantially remodeled the property you now occupy, under Payette City Code you are 
required to obtain a building permit. However, you did not. I closed my purchase of this 
property on November 20, 2007 and part of the deal was that Larry Butler Sr. had 30 days 
to vacate the building. I submit to you a copy of the building permit that is signed by the 
building inspector and dated 12/20/2007. So in fact I did obtain a building permit. On page 
three the first full paragraph states your construction plans were conditionally approved with 
the understanding that you dedicate a small portion of your property 5 feet, so that a 
sidewalk with curb, gutter, and drainage could be installed with foot note eight. Foot note 
eight goes on to say that an individual applying for a building permit must submit a property 
survey. First of all, I did not have an understanding that I would dedicate a small portion of 
my property. Secondly, it is my opinion there is no place in the City Code that says to apply 
for a building permit one must submit a survey. Have any of you ever obtained a building 
permit and had to get a survey as a requirement to get the building permit? Furthermore, in 
foot note eight it says such a survey was requested of Williams and it does not appear that 
what happened here is uncommon. I’m not sure what she is trying to say, but one way to 
interpret that is it appears that what happened here is uncommon for Williams. Is she 
meaning that I am trying to do something legal? I hope that isn’t her intent. For the record 
no survey was requested because the City can’t request a survey as a condition of a 
building permit. However, I was required to approve a drainage plan. This is the full 
drainage plan is right here if you want it, but the signature right here was approved both 
plans by Doug Argo of Holladay Engineering on March 31, 2008. On page four it states the 
City Council unanimously approved your TCO, which is temporary certificate of occupancy, 
and what it doesn’t say and should have is for the storm water retention. As I stated earlier 
Mayor Henderson stated in the December 1st meeting that the other meaning curb, gutter, 
and sidewalk we are going to resolve before that time. It also says that you were given six 
months until May 1,, 2009 to comply, when in fact the minutes say May 31, 2009. Ms. 
Anderson obviously didn’t do a very good job of check her facts. On page seven towards 
the bottom foot note 21, Payette City Code 15.04.08 new construction along substandard 
roads is a reference she used as well as in other meetings Clerk Cordova told me that was 
a section. It says no building permits for new construction shall etcetera, etcetera, etcetera. 
I remind you that this was not a building permit for new construction, this was a remodel. 
Again, Ms. Anderson did not check her facts. On page eight the second to last paragraph it 
states you asked why the county ordinances could not remain as they were. That isn’t 
really what I asked. What I asked was if it is the responsibility of the annexing entity in this 
case the City, to make sure when they annex that the City has all proper right of ways at 
the time of annexation. You all have heard me say numerous times that government needs 
to be accountable just like the public, and if they make mistakes they need to make it right 
and that is why I asked the legal question. Maybe when we annex something we should 
check and make sure that we have gotten the right of way and as a condition of the 
annexation, but we are long past that on this. I just asked the question and maybe how the 
cities should be responsible. As you can see from the gross inadequacies and misquotes 
by the city’s attorney, there appears to be an attempt to intimidate, and I would like to state 



Payette City Council  Page 9 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

that I very much doubt that any member of this governing body would ever allow anyone 
representing the City to intimidate our citizens.   
 
Mr. Williams stated that these are the facts, and the facts are the facts. Clerk Cordova and I 
in good faith have tried to come to an agreement, but because she can’t approve a special 
deal for me, and I sure don’t want any special treatment as a City Councilman. We are here 
in open session for the public to observe how government should negotiate on a situation 
that is not as clear as far as City Code is concerned. One more issue that was not part of 
Ms. Anderson’s letter was that I did receive several plan review comments from the building 
inspector, which are dated 12/6/2007, and this is a copy of that. These comments are a 
punch list of items that I needed to comply with to receive my final certificate of occupancy.  
Nowhere does it state anything like I must give land to the City for their right of way. Finally, 
during Clerk Cordova’s and my discussion she brought up the point about not having 
money in the budget to purchase right of way. Once again, you have all heard me say 
numerous times that when government has a challenge they need to be accountable. I’m 
not a litigator, but I am a negotiator, and I told the attorneys before that my goal here 
tonight is to get this resolved once and for all. 
 
 Therefore, I make the following proposal. According to these plans there is approximately 
130 feet along NE 10th by 5 foot wide or 650 feet that the City needs. I would like to give 
that right of way to the City in exchange for the City installing the necessary improvements 
along NE 10th. If I was sitting in your chair I would ask what the cost of curb, gutter, and 
sidewalk and what is the right of way worth. Imagine I have something else for you. There 
are two documents there and as most of you know I personally negotiated with every 
property owner on the north side of 7th Avenue North and east of North 18th Street. As you 
can see the City paid an average of $3.19 per square foot for the residential property. I 
think you all know also that the City paid substantially more for the right of way along 7th 
Avenue North west of North 18th Street. Furthermore, my property is zoned commercial and 
the county assessor placed a lot more value on commercial property then they do 
residential. The second document shows a commercially zoned property along Highway 95 
that recently sold; the house did sit next to the old Shell Station and sold for $37,500 on a 
60x60 lot or $10.40 a square foot. I based the $10.40 on the purchase price not the 
demolition price. Therefore, I propose to exchange my 650 square foot of land at the cost of 
$8.00 a square foot or $5,200. Recently I was told by a public works contractor that curb, 
gutter, and sidewalk per lineal foot costs about $38.00 or $4,940. So basically I will give 
you $5,200 worth of land and you put in $4,940 worth of improvements. I would also ask 
that the City be responsible for placement and coordination of improvements. As you can 
see I never have nor am tonight asking for anything special. All I want is the same thing 
that every property owner is entitled too, which is proper compensation for their property. If 
the City decided they needed right of way they would have pay for it or be forced to acquire 
it via the eminent building process, and then they have to pay fair market value. Just 
because you do eminent domain doesn’t mean you get it for nothing. Again, I just want to 
be compensated for my right of way and I ask that the Council approve this exchange at 
tonight’s meeting.  
 
Mayor Henderson stated that this is a common practice and we have done this for years. 
Mr. Williams you have sat on the Council for 5 ½ years and we have discussed this 
numerous times for citizens and we’ve had other citizens do this numerous times. Until it 
was time for you to do it there has never been an issue brought up on it. Mr. Williams asked 
Mayor Henderson to name on property owner that we did this to. Mayor Henderson stated 
that I don’t remember his name, but he is the one that is on South 12th Street. Clerk 
Cordova stated that it was Ross Barton. Mayor Henderson stated that we discussed that 



Payette City Council  Page 10 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

very thing here on the Council bench. Ross Barton dedicated the right of way to use and 
put in the curb, gutter, and sidewalk. Mr. Williams stated that the curb, gutter, and sidewalk 
were already there. Mayor Henderson stated that he dedicated the right of way to us. Mr. 
Williams stated that you are wanting curb, gutter, and sidewalk and to for me to give the 
property to you. Mayor Henderson stated that those are two different issues. The 
dedication of the right of way is not the same requirement of installing curb, gutter, and 
sidewalk. Mr. Williams stated that he has no issue installing the curb, gutter, and sidewalk. 
That’s ok, but at no point and time was I told that you also have to give the property to the 
City. We have never had that come before this body that you have to give property and put 
it in yourself. In that Barton case it was already there. You do with new construction, like 
when Mr. Lancaster starts building you have to dedicate your right of ways and your roads 
and all of that type of stuff, but this is not new construction this is existing. That is what I’m 
saying in that code 15.04.08 whatever that talks about new construction that does not talk 
about existing buildings.  
 
Mayor Henderson stated that the Council should probably take this under advisement and 
present this to the attorneys. Mr. Williams stated that you are more than welcome to do that 
I just think it’s going to cause more problems. Mayor Henderson stated that we have trying 
to get this settled for a long time. Councilor Nelson stated that since Mr. Williams did a 
remodel versus new construction that that is the difference. Mr. Williams stated that you 
don’t have to dedicate right of way. Councilor Nelson stated that when he built he put in 
sidewalk, and when his neighbor built he also put in sidewalk. When the used car and 
storage place built they put in sidewalk. I’m just trying to get this straight. Councilor 
Hanigan stated the Mr. Williams has given us a lot of information, and prior to this decision, 
I think most of us had received an overview but nothing as in-depth as this. I certainly 
would not be ready to make a decision until I have time to view everything. Mayor 
Henderson stated that he will advise the attorney and figure out how to move forward with 
this. Mayor Henderson stated that he would argue that we have discussed this numerous 
times. I have actually personally asked you to bring a proposal to the Council just for a 
starting point, so we could have something to negotiate. We never have got anything 
official, anything in writing, or anything official presented to the Council. Mr. Williams stated 
that I have told you and Clerk Cordova that this is what I want to do. Mayor Henderson 
stated that we have asked more than once Jeff, if you would like to be on the agenda and 
present your proposal to the Council and this has gone on for a long time. You can say as 
much as you want to that you were never approached before this, but that, in my opinion, 
just isn’t true. We asked numerous times. Mr. Williams stated that Clerk Cordova and I had 
had met and discussed this and then the next thing I know there is an attorney involved. 
Mayor Henderson stated that for as long as this has went on and for you to say that by 
some stretch of the imagination that it is my responsibility to decide that you want to be on 
the agenda in my mind is ridiculous. You know the procedure and you can ask to be on the 
agenda at any time. Mayor Henderson stated that he is happy that it is finally at this point 
and so is Clerk Cordova because this has gone on so long, and we need a base line to 
start from and start negotiating.  
 
Councilor Heleker asked Mr. Williams that earlier it was said that nowhere does it say that 
the property owner will not be compensated. Does it make mention to the property being 
compensated or are you just citing the lack thereof? Mr. Williams stated that no where does 
it say that government can take your land. Councilor Heleker stated that you point out that it 
doesn’t say that they will not be compensated, but does it say that they will be 
compensated? Mr. Williams stated no, but there is probably way bigger issues that I see 
that none of you have probably seen other than Bert. Councilor Nelson asked Mr. Williams 
that you said that since your property is commercial that it is different than residential. Mr. 



Payette City Council  Page 11 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

Williams stated that on a value aspect, yes. Councilor Nelson stated that I know that we 
have had the ordinance kick in for residential curb, gutter, and sidewalk when you remodel 
or building a garage. We have had them do curb, gutter, and sidewalk and I don’t know 
where the property lines go out to on a typical street. Mr. Williams stated that he has no 
issue with the curb, gutter, and sidewalk; it’s the giving of my property to the City and not 
getting compensated.  Councilor Nelson stated that where the sidewalk would be, would be 
5 foot back farther than from where your property line is. Mr. Williams stated that it appears 
to me that the curb, gutter, and sidewalk would need additional land. If you looked at these 
drawings there is additional right of way on the corner of NE 10th and Main Street that is 
even more than this 5 foot. Councilor Nelson asked if that was for street width 
requirements. Mr. Williams stated that it was for utilities.  
 
Councilor Mussell said to Mr. Williams that one thing we need to be careful of is to make 
sure everyone is treated the same and that you are treated as other citizens. I don’t 
remember us ever giving money to a citizen for their right of way in a remodel situation. By 
what the attorney had stated, this was a pretty common in other cities for this type of thing 
for remodels and I just want to make sure we are doing the same thing for every citizen and 
not giving you preferential treatment. Mr. Williams stated that he has not talked to an 
attorney, but I did talk to the government affairs director for the Association of Realtors 
because I have access to him. I said that the City interprets that when they need right of 
way you should just give it to him, and his comment was that I cannot imagine how that 
could be. So I don’t dispute what you are saying. Mayor Henderson stated that when you 
gave your history of this whole situation that you did forget to mention that we did go 
through quite a period to where you were claiming that there were boundary issues on the 
property. Mr. Williams stated that there is still some of that on the Butler property. Mayor 
Henderson stated that the ones you were claiming on City street side do not exist. Mr. 
Williams  replied no, I thought there was, but there was not. Councilor Nelson stated that he 
would agree with Councilor Hanigan that we have received a lot of paperwork tonight and I 
would like to study this information before I make a decision as to what needs to be done.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Application for “Safe & Sane” Fireworks Permit 

- TNT Fireworks 
 

Mayor Henderson asked Chief Sands if he had any issues with TNT Fireworks. Chief 
Sands stated no. Councilor Williams stated that my only thing about this is that I see people 
parking along Highway 95. Is there any way we can get them on a side street. Where my 
office used to be I would see truck park in the middle of the Highway and go the Chevron 
and Arctic Circle and I see a disaster waiting to happen. Chief Sands stated that in years 
past we have had them in Lonnie’s Parking lot and they had the parking lot to park in. 
Councilor Hanigan stated they had a farmers market at the same location and they directed 
all the parking to the west side of the lot. Mayor Henderson stated that is correct. Councilor 
Hanigan stated that if we can make it a condition to put up a sign. Chief Sands stated that 
we could have them put up “No Parking” signs on the highway side of the lot. 

 
 

Cochran moved and Heleker seconded a motion to approve 
the Fireworks Permit for TNT Fireworks with a contingency 
that they will have “No Parking” signs on Highway 95. 
 

              After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion  
             CARRIED. 



Payette City Council  Page 12 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

 
 

B.   Request for help with painting and repair 
       -  Payette Senior Center 
 
Shirley Freer – 137 No. Main St; Payette, ID 
 
Mrs. Freer stated that we do need some painting done on the second level and maybe a little 
higher. We really do not have what it takes to do that and I was hoping that you might help us 
out with your cherry picker. Mayor Henderson asked if there were any issues or problems. 
Clerk Cordova stated no. Mayor Henderson stated that we will check and see if it is 
operational since it has been a while since we used it. Mrs. Freer asked Mayor Henderson if 
the City could provide a driver for the cherry picker. Mayor Henderson stated that if it’s for the 
Senior Citizen Center I’d be happy to help you do it. Mayor Henderson stated that he will let 
Mrs. Freer know and we will have it checked and see if it is operational and I will let you know 
one way or the other. Mrs. Freer stated that we had expected that we would need it three or 
four days and maybe two men that would be painting and some window work needs to be 
done.  
 
Ralph Sherbondy – 207 Boat Landing Rd; Ontario, OR 
 
Mr. Sherbondy stated that there are two windows in the alley that leak when it rains and we 
need to get those repaired. Mayor Henderson asked Mr. Sherbondy if he is actually looking 
for some actual man power to assist in putting the plywood on the windows. Mr. Sherbondy 
stated no. All we need is a way to get up there. Mayor Henderson stated that once again you 
are just asking for the cherry picker to get someone up there. Mr. Sherbondy stated yes. 
Mayor Henderson stated that he will have the staff check the equipment and Mayor 
Henderson will come and see them. Mayor Henderson stated that he as well as some of the 
councilmember’s will be going to some meetings in Boise for the remainder of the week, so 
don’t expect to hear from us until the following week.  
 
 
C.   Conditional Use Permit – Lancaster Development, pasture horses for weed control 
on property at Center Avenue & Payette Heights Road, 35-9-5 portion of NW. The 
property is zoned A-Residential.  
       -    Gene Lancaster 
 
Gene Lancaster – 11428 Scotch Pines Rd; Payette, ID 
 
Mr. Lancaster stated that he is planning on doing the same thing the school did. We are 
lagging a little bit behind because we had to go through the approval process. Mayor 
Henderson stated that basically what you are asking is for the City Council to uphold the 
conditional use permit that the planning and zoning department approved. Mr. Lancaster 
stated yes, but there was a stipulation on the permit that it was only good from April 1st 
through July 31st and I would like extend that. Mayor Henderson asked Mr. Lancaster if he is 
asking the council to extend it as long as the weather allows. Mr. Lancaster stated we have 
people that would like to put their horses out there year round and haul hay in there in the 
winter.  Clerk Cordova stated that if it substantially changes what the planning and zoning 
commission agreed to it would require a public hearing. Mayor Henderson stated that you 
should go ahead with the original conditional use permit like it stated through July 31st and 
then we will hold a public hearing to ask that the dates be extended. Councilor Heleker stated 



Payette City Council  Page 13 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

that the school district was surprised by the horses being put out there and didn’t mean to do 
something that was illegal.  
 

Heleker moved and Hanigan seconded a motion to approve 
the Conditional Use Permit for Gene Lancaster. 
 
At the roll call: 

             Ayes: Nelson, Heleker, Hanigan, Mussell, Williams 
             Nays: Cochran 
 
            The motion CARRIED. 

 
 

              After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion  
             CARRIED. 
 
 D.   Weed control proposal  
       -    Lancaster Development 
 
Gene Lancaster – 11428 Scotch Pines Rd; Payette, ID 
 
Mr. Lancaster stated that basically what we are asking is that the top portion of 37 acres on 
Payette Heights and Center Avenue to allow the horses to take care of the weeds and at the 
end of the horse period if the weeds are still high we will then mow. Councilor Cochran told 
Mr. Lancaster that the efforts he is putting out on this is good and I hope the folks that are 
here that have complained about this are seeing some results. What I am concerned about is 
what we do with you we have to do with everyone else and I cannot get it in my head that if 
we give you this conditional use permit to put horses to take care of your weed problem then 
I’m going to put goats on my front lawn. Mayor Henderson stated that we need to consider 
that not everyone buys a huge piece of property to develop and subdivide and the economy 
takes a dive and they are stuck with the issue. Councilor Cochran stated that he cannot 
accept that. He has had lots of people mow big lots. Mayor Henderson stated that you are 
free to accept or not accept, but I also think it is the job of this body to consider each situation 
differently. Councilor Cochran stated that it seems to me that when the Council gets involved 
on code enforcement it gets strung out three months. It’s not fair to a lot of people. If Mr. 
Lancaster mows today he is still going to have to mow again at the end of July, because he is 
in violation and that is just something that I am aware of. When an issue likes this comes 
before the Council it amazes me how complex and confusing it can be when the ordinance 
has been upheld so many times in court, people have been fined, directed and re-directed 
and ordered to cut their grass and weeds and here we are doing this. In my opinion that is 
just how I feel about it. Mayor Henderson stated that I don’t disagree that it drags out to long 
situations  but I would hate to see a City that we just have a set of code and let it be 
interpreted by the book and never give anyone a chance to challenge the code and ask for 
an exception.  Councilor Heleker stated that in response to Councilor Cochran’s statement I 
agree to an extent that sometimes it does go on to long, but I just think that if cases weren’t 
to be considered individually there really wouldn’t be any necessity for this body. I think we 
do need to take individual situations into account and that is why we are here. Councilor 
Williams stated that what we did tonight on annexing all the property along River Street that 
is going to be a weed problem. I would really like to hear the Chiefs comment about maybe 
we need to do something, but there has to be something we can do. Mayor Henderson stated 
that we discussed that in the work session and the council gave us until January 1st to make 
some adjustments to address that. That is definitely a good point though and there is a lot of 



Payette City Council  Page 14 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

property down by the river that has weed problems and this is an issue we need to address 
as a body. Clerk Cordova stated that we did email Mr. Lancaster and try and come up with 
some kind of a solution that would benefit Mr. Lancaster as well as the adjacent properties. 
We have tried to help all parties in this matter.  
 
Councilor Nelson asked Clerk Cordova how has the response been from other problem 
areas? Are they getting them mowed? Clerk Cordova stated yes we are getting some results 
out of this. Mayor Henderson stated that what he is asking for is to allow the horses to bring 
down the 37 acres worth of weeds. Councilor Williams stated that we did that already with the 
conditional use permit. Mayor Henderson stated that the conditional use permit was just 
saying that he could have horses on A-residential essentially. Councilor Williams stated that 
he is asking for permission to mow the perimeter that the horses are on. Mayor Henderson 
stated that he already mowed it what he is asking not to mow the 37 acre portion that the 
horses are going to be. Councilor Nelson asked what about mowing the border where the 
other homeowners are. Mr. Lancaster stated that he has already mowed that. Councilor 
Nelson asked Mr. Lancaster if he turned over, tilled plus mowed the property. Mr. Lancaster 
stated yes. Councilor Nelson asked Mr. Lancaster if he will be keeping that mowed close to 
their property. Councilor Nelson asked Chief Sands what he needs to keep mowed. Chief 
Sands stated that is a wild card. Will it burn, yes it will burn. Councilor Nelson asked if 8” 
would burn not as bad as 12” or 15”. Chief Sands stated yes, and a lot of times mowing that 
will slow the rate of the fire.  
 

Heleker moved and Hanigan seconded a motion to approve 
the weed control proposal to not mow the 37 acres where 
the horses will be kept.   
 
At the roll call: 

             Ayes: Nelson, Heleker, Hanigan, Mussell, Williams 
             Nays: Cochran 
 
            The motion CARRIED. 

 
 
 
 

E. Conditional Use Permit – Payette School District, pasture horses for weed control 
on property at Center Avenue, 35-9-5 portion of NW ¼. The property is zoned A-
Residential.  
 

Williams moved and Mussell seconded a motion to approve 
the conditional use permit by the Payette School District to 
pasture horses for weed control on property that is zoned A-
Residential.  
 
At the roll call: 

             Ayes: Nelson, Heleker, Hanigan, Mussell 
             Nays: Cochran 
 
            The motion CARRIED. 

 
 



Payette City Council  Page 15 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

F. Ordinance #1302 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PAYETTE, IDAHO, 
AMENDING SECTION 8.28.030 C OF THE PAYETTE MUNICIPAL CODE TO 
CHANGE THE DESIGANTION OF DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY TO FIRE CHIEF 
AND SECTION 8.25.030 E, TO ALLOW THE USE OF BURNING BARRELS FOR 
YARD DEBRIS ONLY; SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; ESTABLISHING 
SEVERABLILITY; ESTABLISHING A REPEALER; ESTABLISHING A PENALTY. 

  -  FIRST READING 
 
Mayor Henderson stated that he would like to give a little history on this. Some time ago the 
Council passed an ordinance to ban burning barrels within the city limits of Payette. This was 
originally addressed at burning trash in the City and we allow with a burn permit for people to 
burn brush, leaves, and etc. A number of residents have burn barrels to burn those items in 
instead of piling them up on their property, but according to the code it states that you are not 
allowed to use these burning barrels. What this ordinance does is allow them to use the 
burning barrels for the yard debris.  
 

Heleker moved and Williams seconded a motion to suspend 
the rules and pass Ordinance 1302 on its first reading. 
 

              After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion  
             CARRIED. 
 

Heleker moved and Cochran seconded a motion that 
Ordinance 1302 due pass. 
 

              After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion  
             CARRIED. 
 
G. Request for Special Events Permit – Ride Idaho 
  - Payette Chamber of Commerce 
 
Liz Belvoir – 1207 7th Ave No; Payette, ID 
 
Liz asked the Council to waive the fees and also asked the bikers be able to use the showers at the 
Payette City Pool.  Some discussion followed. 
 

Cochran moved and Heleker seconded a motion to approve 
the special event permit application by the Payette Chamber 
of Commerce, to not waive the fees, and to continue 
charging the $1.50 for the showers. 
 

              After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion  
             CARRIED. 
 
Councilor Cochran asked Liz if she gets any feedback about things like cost to please let the council 
know for next year.  
 
H.  Resolution 2009-06 –Loan Resolution of the City of Payette authorizing and providing for 
the incurrence of indebtedness for the purpose of providing portion of the cost of acquiring, 
construction, enlarging, improving, and/or extending its sewer. 
 
Mayor Henderson stated that this is authorization to go ahead and borrow money to do the clarifier.  



Payette City Council  Page 16 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

Councilor Williams asked if this is the document that needs to be signed that the guy from the USDA 
presented last time. Clerk Cordova stated that this was one of the many documents that need to be 
signed, but this is authorization to incur debt. Councilor Nelson asked what the document was that 
the Council approved last time. Clerk Cordova stated that was the loan agreement document.  
 

Hanigan moved and Nelson seconded a motion to 
Resolution 2009-06. 
 

              After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion  
             CARRIED. 
 
 
I. Application for  “Safe & Sane” Fireworks Permit 

- Bernie Jones 
 
Mayor Henderson stated that Chief Sands has looked over the application and has no problems. 
Councilor Heleker asked if this was in the Albertson’s parking lot. Mayor Henderson stated yes.  
 

Heleker moved and Williams seconded a motion to approve 
the “Safe & Sane” fireworks permit for Bernie Jones.  
 

              After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion  
             CARRIED. 
 
 
J.  Approval of Professional services proposal from GJZ Architecture of Payette City Library 
Study 

 
Mayor Henderson stated that this is a study for an addition to the library. This is an item that 
we budgeted for in the last budget and we are asking to go ahead and let this architecture 
company move forward with the study. Councilor Heleker stated that the subtotal of $6,950 is 
for the drawing up of the plans, but they stated that if there was additional work and they 
went through an itemized list. Two things caught my eye there. The principal architect would 
be at an additional rate of $105 and hour and then it also listed architect $90 and hour. Is it 
necessary to be paying two architects at this point? Mayor Henderson stated that he thinks 
this is just a list of their rates and whoever happens to do the extra work, and that always 
scares me because it seems like there are very few projects where there isn’t some extra 
work. Councilor Nelson asked how we will know at what point it exceeds the $6900 dollars? 
Mayor Henderson stated that he doesn’t see any problem in adding on the top of the second 
page that in an event that the scope of the project should change with Council approval the 
following is an hourly rate. Councilor Williams stated that the architectural feasibility study 
basically as you all have seen the library is being used a lot more. To expand there is so 
many square feet per body. They have already met with Dion and went through this and a 
couple of things I would say this would be a do not exceed $6,950 type of a thing. If you 
looked at the budget we actually budgeted $5,000 and this is $6,950. The library has been 
very frugal and they felt that they can pull $1,950 out of there and also at the top of page 64 it 
says no additional service shall be billed with the prior written consent. So, between the not 
to exceed and that clause as I would see it when they get into this and instead of wanting 
8,000 more square feet they need 50,000 square feet, well this is a proposal on what they 
think they need. As long as we don’t get too carried away, and Colleen is pretty conservative 
and I doubt that we will go more than that, but let protect ourselves with the do not exceed 
clause. Mayor Henderson stated that he agreed and we have been bit so many times by the 



Payette City Council  Page 17 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

change orders and so on, but Dion has always treated us very well. Councilor Mussell stated 
that we do need to keep in mind that this is just for preliminary drawings this wouldn’t actually 
be for workable drawings. It’s just to see what we need.  

Mussell moved and Williams seconded a motion to approve 
the professional services from GJZ architecture for the 
library study not to exceed $6,950. 
 

              After a unanimous voice vote by the Council, the motion  
             CARRIED. 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
No Comments Heard.  
 
CITIZENS COMMENTS  
 
Aaron Sobers – 2855 Center Ave; Payette, ID 
 
Mr. Sobers stated that he is here to talk about what you decide for Mr. Lancaster. At the last meeting 
you stated that you were going to follow the code to cut the weeds down. He has a shed on his 
property that is about to fall down and it attracts stray cats, coyotes, skunks, and so on. I would like 
the council to look at this matter.  
 
Councilor Williams stated that when looking at the bills that are paid is there any desire by Council to 
have more itemization. If you look at the bills it has ICB all departments and I know from looking at 
this that it is the credit cards. I think we need some itemization to see where miscellaneous funds are 
going, and that is just a question. Mayor Henderson stated that we can, and those are available to the 
Council at any time. I believe when you sign off on the bills aren’t those available? Councilor Williams 
stated yes. Councilor Hanigan stated that she scans them when she’s signing bills. Councilor 
Williams stated that he scans them too he’s just wondering if some of the Council members not on 
the finance committee would care to see this information. Mayor Henderson asked if the three that 
are not on the finance committee trust the three that are to take care of that, or do you wish to see it? 
Councilor Nelson stated that when he was on the committee he reviewed them. Councilor Mussell 
agreed.  
 
Councilor Mussell asked if we are on the mosquito abatement district, I know that Payette County is. 
Mayor Henderson stated that it is a Payette County function. Councilor Mussell stated that Payette 
County I know is spending a lot of money into that. Does that encompass anything within the city 
limits?  Mayor Henderson stated that yes, it is supposed to and in the Independent Enterprise it has a 
very good story and also a name and contact number of the abatement company. I asked the 
commissioners about that this morning at breakfast and they stated that you will need to contact the 
abatement company with any questions.  
 
Councilor Heleker stated that on the treasurer’s report we still have $2,000 for the youth advisory 
council and I just wanted to let everyone know that you will have students this year coming in and 
asking about that. The people who were heading up last year were busy with other projects and just 
didn’t get to it, but they will be in this year.  
 
Councilor Williams asked Clerk Cordova if she could refresh our memory on what the transfer to 
capital fund. Clerk Cordova stated that it was $100,000 to capital improvement and $300,000 was 



Payette City Council  Page 18 of 18 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
06/15/2009 
 

earmarked for the fire station. Councilor Williams asked Clerk Cordova if we put the $300,000 in a 
separate account for the fire station. Clerk Cordova stated yes.  
 
Councilor Williams asked what the reserve for unemployment was for, and why are we over 
budgeting for it. Clerk Cordova stated that we have had a couple of people that used to work for the 
street department that don’t work for the street department anymore. Councilor Williams stated that 
this was in administration. Clerk Cordova stated that it was for the entire street department and it is 
just taken out of the street administration line item.  
 
MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 

 This month’s issue of life magazine listed the complete list of America’s 200 best 
hunting and fishing cities for 2009 and the City of Payette was number 67 on that list.  

 A number of the council members and I will be in Boise attending the Association of 
Idaho Cities conference for the remainder of the week. 

 Next regular meeting is 7:00 PM July 6th.  
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

    
      A motion was made by Heleker and Mussell seconded 
      by to adjourn. 
 

After a unanimous voice vote, the motion CARRIED, and 
the Council adjourned at 8:55 PM. 

 
     Signed this ______day of ____________, 2009. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
      DOUGLAS E. HENDERSON, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Mary Cordova, City Clerk 


